
   

 
 

 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

 
Date: Wednesday, 6 July 2016 
 
Time:  2.00 pm 
 
Place: Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley House, Station Street, Nottingham, 

NG2 3NG 
 
 
Councillors are requested to attend the above meeting to transact the following 
business 
 

 
 
Corporate Director for Resilience 
 
Governance Officer: Rav Kalsi   Direct Dial: 0115 8763759 
 
 

   
1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  

 
 

2  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS  
 

 

3  MINUTES  
To confirm the following: 
 
The minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee held on 9 May 
2016; 
 
The minutes of the Overview and Scrutiny Call-in Sub-Committee held 
on 15 June 2016. 
 

3 - 10 

4  DISCUSSION WITH PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR LEISURE AND 
CULTURE  
Report of the Head of Legal Services 
 

11 - 12 

5  AIR QUALITY IN NOTTINGHAM  
Report of the Head of Legal Services 
 

13 - 40 

6  WORK PROGRAMME 2016/17  
Report of the Head of Legal Services 

41 - 50 

Public Document Pack



 

IF YOU NEED ANY ADVICE ON DECLARING AN INTEREST IN ANY ITEM ON THE 
AGENDA, PLEASE CONTACT THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE, IF 
POSSIBLE BEFORE THE DAY OF THE MEETING  
 

CITIZENS ATTENDING MEETINGS ARE ASKED TO ARRIVE AT LEAST 15 MINUTES 
BEFORE THE START OF THE MEETING TO BE ISSUED WITH VISITOR BADGES 

 

CITIZENS ARE ADVISED THAT THIS MEETING MAY BE RECORDED BY MEMBERS 
OF THE PUBLIC.  ANY RECORDING OR REPORTING ON THIS MEETING SHOULD 
TAKE PLACE IN ACCORDANCE WITH THE COUNCIL’S POLICY ON RECORDING AND 
REPORTING ON PUBLIC MEETINGS, WHICH IS AVAILABLE AT 
WWW.NOTTINGHAMCITY.GOV.UK.  INDIVIDUALS INTENDING TO RECORD THE 
MEETING ARE ASKED TO NOTIFY THE GOVERNANCE OFFICER SHOWN ABOVE IN 
ADVANCE. 

http://www.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/


1 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held at Tea Room - Council House on 9 May 2016 from 
16.51 - 16.56 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Councillor Brian Parbutt (Chair) 
Councillor Glyn Jenkins 
Councillor Georgina Culley 
Councillor Gul Nawaz Khan (Vice Chair) 
Councillor Neghat Nawaz Khan 
Councillor Leslie Ayoola 
Councillor Mohammed Ibrahim 
Councillor Patience Uloma Ifediora 
Councillor Sue Johnson 

Councillor Azad Choudhry 
Councillor Josh Cook 
Councillor Pat Ferguson 
 

 
Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
 
Zena West - Governance Officer 
 
1  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
Councillor Azad Choudhry – other Council business 
Councillor Pat Ferguson - unwell 
 
2  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

 
None. 
 
3  MINUTES 

 
The following minutes were confirmed and signed by the Chair: 
 

 Overview and Scrutiny Call-in Panel on 30 March 2016;  

 Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 6 April 2016; 

 Overview and Scrutiny Call-in Panel on 12 April 2016. 
 
4  APPOINTMENT OF VICE-CHAIR 

 
RESOLVED to appoint Councillor Gul Khan as Vice-Chair for the municipal 
year 2016/2017. 
 
5  TERMS OF REFERENCE 

 
The Committee considered the Terms of Reference agreed at Annual Council on 9 
May 2016. 
 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 9.05.16 

2 

RESOLVED to note the terms of reference for Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee. 
 
6  ESTABLISHMENT OF OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE SUB-

COMMITTEES 2016/17 
 

The Committee considered the appointments and terms of reference of its sub 
committees (the Call-in Panel, and Scrutiny Review Panels) and the appointment of 
the five scrutiny chairs. 
 
RESOLVED 
 
(1) to appoint the following Councillors as Chairs of the Scrutiny Review 

Panels: 
 
 Councillor Brian Parbutt  

Councillor Anne Peach 
Councillor Glyn Jenkins 

 Councillor Sue Johnson 
 Councillor Azad Choudhry 
 
(2) to approve the terms of reference and membership of the Call-in Panel 

and to appoint:  
 

Labour Group Conservative Group 
Councillor Sue Johnson Councillor Andrew Rule 
Councillor Azad Choudhry  
Councillor Gul Khan  
Councillor Neghat Khan  
Councillor Glyn Jenkins  
Councillor Patience Uloma Ifediora  
Councillor Brian Parbutt   
Councillor Anne Peach  

  
Substitutes -  Substitutes -  
Councillor Pat Ferguson Councillor Jim Armstrong 
Councillor Josh Cook Councillor Georgina Culley 
Councillor Leslie Ayoola  
Councillor Mohammed Ibrahim  
Councillor Ginny Klein  

 
I. Councillor Brian Parbutt as Chair of the Panel; 

 
II. Councillor Gul Khan as Vice-Chair of the Panel. 

 
7  APPOINTMENT OF CO-OPTEES ON OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 

 
The Committee considered the arrangements for co-option to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee and/or its sub committees. 
 
 

Page 4



Overview and Scrutiny Committee - 9.05.16 

3 

RESOLVED 
 
(1) to appoint David Richards (as Church of England Diocese 

representative) and Ken Daly (as Roman Catholic Diocese 
representative) for scrutiny of education matters; 

 
(3) to note that Assim Ishaque has 1 years remaining as a statutory co-

opted Parent Governor Representative for scrutiny of education matters; 
 
(4)  to appoint Beverley Frost as a non-statutory co-opted Third Sector 

Advocate for the municipal year 2016/17. 
 
8  DATES OF FUTURE MEETINGS 

 
RESOLVED to meet on the following Wednesday’s at 2.00 pm: 
 
2016 
 

2017 

6 July 4 January 
7 September 8 February 
5 October 8 March 
9 November 5 April 
7 December  
 
 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank



1 

NOTTINGHAM CITY COUNCIL  
 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY - CALL IN PANEL 
 
MINUTES of the meeting held in the Ground Floor Committee Room - Loxley 
House, Station Street, Nottingham, NG2 3NG on 15 June 2016 from 10.00 am - 
10.42 am 
 
Membership  
Present Absent 
Councillor Josh Cook 
Councillor Glyn Jenkins 
Councillor Sue Johnson 
Councillor Andrew Rule 
 

Councillor Azad Choudhry 
Councillor Patience Uloma Ifediora 
Councillor Gul Nawaz Khan 
Councillor Neghat Nawaz Khan 
Councillor Brian Parbutt 
Councillor Anne Peach 
 

Colleagues, partners and others in attendance:  
 
Rebecca Ironmonger - Group Assistant  
Lucy Juby - Project Manager 
Rav Kalsi - Senior Governance Officer 
Nick Lee - Head of Access and Learning 
Councillor Sam Webster - Portfolio Holder for Education, Employment and Skills 
 
1  APPOINTMENT OF CHAIR 

 
RESOLVED for Councillor Glyn Jenkins to be appointed Chair for the purpose 
of the meeting. 
 
2  APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
None. 
 
3  DECLARATIONS OF INTERESTS 

 
None. 
 
4  CONFIRMATION OF VALIDITY OF CALL-IN 

 
Councillor Glyn Jenkins (Chair) explained the procedure for the hearting to the 
attendees. He outlined the reasons for the call-in and requested the Panel to confirm 
its validity.  
 
RESOLVED to confirm the call-in request as valid on the following ground: 
 
(1) Viable alternatives not considered: 
 

The decision does not refer to a viable alternative being considered such 
as a new school in Wollaton and therefore we would challenge the need 
to spend £100,000 at this stage. 

Page 7



Overview and Scrutiny - Call in Panel - 15.06.16 

2 

 
5  CONSIDERATION OF CALL-IN REQUEST 

 
Following the report from the Head of Democratic Services, the Committee was 
asked to: 
 

 consider the information provided in relation to Delegated Decision 24523 
Early works including design development in relation to the potential 
expansion of Middleton Primary School and the reasons given for requesting a 
call-in of that decision and use that information to inform questioning and 
discussion; 

 

 focus on the reasons for the call-in as given in the call-in request form, and 
based on the evidence from the Portfolio Holder, his supporting colleague(s), 
and the councillors who requested the call-in decide to either: 

 
i) require that the decision is reconsidered, and make 

recommendation(s) as to what should be taken into 
consideration; or 
 

ii) agree that the decision does not need to be reconsidered and 
can be implemented. 

 
Councillor Sam Webster, presented the Panel with the following information in 
relation to the reasons for taking the decision: 
 
(a) Middleton Primary School serves citizens from both Wollaton West and 

Wollaton East and Lenton Abbey and there is an immediate need for school 
places in these areas;  

 
(b) Nottingham City Council has a commitment to ensure that every child in 

Nottingham is taught in a school judged good or outstanding by Ofsted and 
this has been included in the Council’s Plan (agreed at Full Council in 2015). 
Nottingham City Council has committed £33 million to support this; 

 
(c) The Council has already agreed to extend Fernwood Primary School in 

Wollaton and this decision is for early design works to establish if an 
expansion to Middleton Primary is at all possible. This is a necessary step 
before any consultation can take place; 

 
(d) Local authorities no longer have the power to build new maintained school, 

one of the few options remaining is to expand existing provision and the 
decision taken was to establish if this is even feasible. 

 
Councillor Georgina Culley (call-in signatory), responded with the following 
information: 
 
(e) A request for background information was denied yesterday by the Admissions 

Team, a matter which had been escalated to the Council’s Monitoring Officer. 
In response, Rav Kalsi, Senior Governance Officer clarified that the request 
had been made less than 24 hours before the Call-in Panel and it would have 

Page 8



Overview and Scrutiny - Call in Panel - 15.06.16 

3 

taken significant time to provide a response. In light of this, the Monitoring 
Officer supported the view that the information would be provided within 5 
working days, in line with the usual response deadlines for councillor 
enquiries. It was also felt that, had the request been made at an earlier stage 
then the information could have been provided in advance of the Call-in Panel; 

 
(f) Consultation with the local community should take place before money is 

spent on producing design works; 
 
(g) the Council’s policy of expanding schools sites across the city is not viable and 

continues to increase pressure on surrounding areas, in terms of traffic and 
access; 

 
(h) Other viable sites for a new school have not been considered. There should 

have been an extensive search and an explanation given as to why the 
Council is not building another school. By commissioning design works it gives 
the impression that a decision to expand Middleton Primary has already been 
taken. 

 
Councillor Sam Webster raised the following in response to the points raised: 
 
(i) Contrary to what was stated on the Call-in request form, the Portfolio Holder 

had discounted doing nothing as the Council has a legal duty to provide school 
places for children in Nottingham; 

 
(j) The Council is not opposed to academisation and new academies such as 

Bluecoat Primary Academy have been developed with the Council’s support; 
 
(k) Before the Council consults on a potential expansion to Middleton Primary 

School, it is essential to establish whether it is even feasible. Once design 
works have taken place, those consulted would at least be able to see what 
they are being consulted on; 

 
(l) Any new schools in the city would need to be a free school which does not go 

through the same rigorous consultation process applied to local authorities. 
 
Panel members raised the following points: 
 
(m) There had been an initial discussion about the catchment areas for both 

Fernwood and Middleton Schools but the view of the governing bodies was 
that this would be counter-productive and damaging; 

 
(n) The value of delegated decision 2453 is £100,000, which is small proportion of 

the £33 million set aside to ensure that every child in Nottingham is taught at a 
good or outstanding school; 

 
(o) Traffic and congestion concerns around schools is common around all schools 

in Nottingham and there would have been objections had the Portfolio Holder 
opted to do nothing at all in the circumstances. 

 

Page 9



Overview and Scrutiny - Call in Panel - 15.06.16 

4 

RESOLVED to agree that the delegated decision 2453 – ‘Early works including 
design development in relation to the potential expansion of Middleton Primary 
School’ does not need to be reconsidered and can be implemented for the 
following reason: 
 

 The decision is for early design and feasibility work that engages the 
school to develop a potential expansion at Middleton Primary, before 
consultation with the wider community. It is a reasonable step for this to 
take place so that, should the proposals progress, those being consulted 
understand what they are being consulted on. 

 
 

Page 10



 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

6 JULY 2016 

DISCUSSION WITH PORTFOLIO HOLDER FOR LEISURE AND CULTURE 

REPORT OF THE HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES 

 
1 Purpose 
 
1.1 An opportunity to hear from the Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Culture 

on his key priorities, objectives in 2016/17 and current challenges.   
 
2 Action required 
 
2.1 The Committee is asked to use the information received at the meeting 

from Councillor Dave Trimble, Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Culture, to 
inform questioning.  

 
3 Background information 

 
3.1 On 9 November 2015, the Council Plan was formally approved by Full 

Council and this will guide the Council’s services and approach to 
support the delivery of its key priorities for the city over the next four 
years to 2019. 

 
3.2 Each Portfolio Holder has been consulted on the deliverables in their 

area and the Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Culture will attend the 
Committee to outline his overall vision for his executive portfolio. 

 
3.3 In the Council Plan 2015-19, Councillor Dave Trimble identified the 

following:  
 
 Aims over the next 4 years 
 

 Help families get on in life by providing a good range of leisure activities, 
free and cheap events and excellent public services, as well as creating 
a development plan for the new Central Library; 

 

 Attract more visitors to our city, for example, by investing in making 
Nottingham Castle a world-class visitor attraction; 

 

 Provide more opportunities for participation and excellence in disability 
sport. 

 
Key things that we will do 
 

 Rejuvenate Nottingham Castle Quarter as a major national heritage 
attraction; 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 4



 

 Make Nottingham the fastest growing city for disability sports 
participation in England; 

 

 Work with local people to deliver more Green Flag Award winning parks 
and open spaces than any other council in the country. 

 
3.4 Since 2011, the Leisure and Culture portfolio has achieved the following: 
 

 New libraries opened within St Ann’s and Bulwell Joint Service Centres 

 25 Parks and Open Spaces sites have achieved Green Flag status 

 £9 million transformation of Victoria Leisure Centre in Sneinton 

 New £16 million Harvey Hadden Sports Village 

 Nottingham hosted the Milk Race, Tour of Britian, National Armed Forces 
Day, ATP and WTA Tennis and Olympic Torch Relay events  

 
4 List of attached information 
 
4.1 None. 
 
5 Background papers, other than published works or those 

disclosing exempt or confidential information 
 
5.1 None. 
 
6 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
6.1 None. 
 
7 Wards affected 
 
7.1 All. 
 
8 Contact information 
 
8.1 Rav Kalsi 
 Senior Governance Officer 
 0115 8763759 
 rav.kalsi@nottinghamcity.gov.uk  

Page 12

mailto:rav.kalsi@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

6 JULY 2016 

AIR QUALITY IN NOTTINGHAM 

REPORT OF HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES  

 
1 Purpose 
 
1.1 To consider an update on the Council’s work in improving air quality in 

Nottingham. 
 
2 Action required 
 
2.1 The Committee is asked to consider what action Nottingham City Council 

is taking to manage and improve the quality of air in Nottingham. 
 
3 Background information 

 
3.1 In the England, the Secretary of State for Environment, Food and Rural 

Affairs has responsibility for meeting air quality limit values and the 
Department for Environment, Food and Rural Affairs (Defra) co-ordinates 
assessment and air quality plans for the UK as a whole. 

 
3.2 Nottingham City Council regulates industrial, commercial and domestic 

activities that emit pollution in order to control and reduce air pollution in 
the city. The Council will also monitor air pollution levels and work with 
other to develop and implement air quality action plans to reduce air 
pollution and improve air quality. 

 
3.3 There are two Air Quality Management Areas (AQMAs) in Nottingham: 
 

 Nottingham No.2 AQMA: city centre north, east and south 
(nitrogen dioxide); 

 

 Nottingham No.3 AQMA: Dunkirk (nitrogen dioxide). 
 

3.4 Where AQMAs are declared local authorities are required to devise and 
publish Actions Plans and where AQMAs arise from road transport, local 
authorities are encouraged to incorporate any Action Plans within the 
Local Transport Strategy. Nottingham City Council has done this. 

 
3.5 In May 2016 the World Health Organisation (WHO) stated that more than 

80% of people living in urban areas that monitor air pollution are exposed 
to air quality levels that exceed WHO limits1. While all regions of the 
world are affected, populations in low-income cities are the most 
impacted. 

                                                 
1
 The WHO air quality standard for PM10 is an annual average of 20 micrograms per cubic 

meter. Nottingham recorded a figure of 21 micrograms per cubic meter. 

Page 13

Agenda Item 5



 

 
3.6 Research produced by the WHO shows a slight reduction in overall 

levels of particulates in the air we breathe across Europe. However, the 
WHO report also reveals the following 10 UK cities which are breaching 
their air quality standards for levels of PM10 particulate air pollution: Port 
Talbot, Stanford-le-Hope, Glasgow, Leeds, London, Scunthorpe, 
Eastbourne, Nottingham, Oxford and Southampton. 

 
3.7 Organisations and campaign groups such as Friends of the Earth are 

calling for ‘Clean Air Zones’ to be introduced across all UK cities and 
large towns and for urgent action to remove the worst polluting diesel 
vehicles from our roads. 

 
4 List of attached information 
 
4.1  Appendix 1 – Briefing paper provided by Nottingham Friends of the 

Earth. 
 
4.2 Appendix 2 – Presentation provided by Environmental Health and Safer 

Places Team. 
 
5 Background papers, other than published works or those 

disclosing exempt or confidential information 
 
5.1 None. 
 
6 Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
 
6.1 World Health Organisation – Air pollution levels rising in many of the 

world’s poorest cities. 12 May 2016 
 http://www.who.int/mediacentre/news/releases/2016/air-pollution-

rising/en/  
 
7 Wards affected 
 
7.1 All. 
 
8 Contact information 
 
8.1 Rav Kalsi 
 Senior Governance Officer 
 0115 8763759 
 rav.kalsi@nottinghamcity.gov.uk  

Page 14

http://www.who.int/mediacentre/news/releases/2016/air-pollution-rising/en/
http://www.who.int/mediacentre/news/releases/2016/air-pollution-rising/en/
mailto:rav.kalsi@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


Nottingham Friends of the Earth 
Briefing note on air quality in Nottingham 

 
1) In April 2014, Public Health England reported on local mortality associated with 

particulates, based on Committee on the Medical Effects of Air Pollutants 
(COMEAP) estimates of 29,000 deaths p.a. in the UK (including 150 in 
Nottingham City). In May 2014 the World Health Organisation produced a table 
of particulate levels in cities around the world showing Nottingham above the 
WHO guideline of 10μg/m3 for PM2.5. 

 
2) In October 2014, the Director of Public Health reported to the City’s Health & 

Wellbeing Board the figure of 150 deaths p.a. due to particulates with a loss of 
1,559 life years, of which up to 70% are due to traffic pollution – with no safe 
level of particulates. Actions suggested by the DPH included: 

 

 Nearly 80% of car trips under five miles could be replaced by walking, cycling 
or using public transport; 

 Promote active travel amongst local authority staff and major employers 

 Improve street environments to prioritise walkability over cars; 

 Inform susceptible individuals of the risks of air pollution and how to take 
avoiding action; 

 Organise ‘eco-driving’ training for taxi drivers, for example to avoid engine 
idling; 

 Replace boilers with least polluting models; 

 Ensure new buildings are air quality neutral; 

 Make full use of local authority powers to regulate types of traffic and traffic 
flows. 

 
3) In December 2014, the House of Commons Environmental Audit Committee 

published a report on Air Quality. Recommendations include: Low Emission 
Zones (as in London), planning guidance to prioritise air quality – linking new 
schools and workplaces with public transport and accessible by bicycle or foot, 
getting the most polluting vehicles off the road, and not siting schools, care 
homes, hospitals near busy roads. The Committee also noted that the 
government had failed to implement recommendations made by them in 2010 
and 2011. 

 
4) Since then a separate estimate has been published for deaths due to nitrogen 

dioxide (also mainly from traffic) of 23,500 p.a. for the UK. In February 2016, a 
report for the Royal Colleges of Physicians and Paediatrics & Child Health put 
together the figures for particulates and NO2 (allowing for significant overlap) 
estimating a total around 40,000 deaths attributable to outdoor air pollution for 
the UK, with a cost to society over £20bn p.a. That would suggest over 200 
deaths p.a. in Nottingham due to air pollution. 

 
5) EU Directives required air pollution to be below agreed levels by 2010, with 5 

years extra time allowed to the UK, though full compliance may not have been 
achieved until 2030. So in 2015 the Supreme Court ordered the UK government 
to produce a Plan to reduce air pollution. Defra finally produced an Action Plan in 
December 2015 – which mainly requires selected local authorities, including 
Nottingham City, to implement Clean Air Zones. The legislation based on EU 
Directives will presumably continue until any change is made following UK exit 

Page 15



 2 

from the EU. 
 
6) Defra’s plan for Nottingham suggests that a ‘Class B Clean Air Zone’ will be 

needed ‘to reduce NO2 levels to the necessary level in the shortest possible time 
and by 2020 at the latest’. (Class B means restricting or charging HGVs, buses, 
coaches and taxis which don’t meet required pollution standards (typically Euro 
VI), but there would be no restrictions on LGVs or cars.) The class and area of 
Zones ‘will be finalised based on the scoping studies funded by Government’. As 
far as we are aware, no scoping studies have yet been commissioned. 

 
7) Friends of the Earth wants to see: 

 action on Clean Air Zones as a matter of urgency (in all cities and large 
towns); 

 Clean Air Zones to include vans and cars, both petrol and diesel; 

 a national scrappage scheme for dirty diesels. 
 
8) Friends of the Earth recommendations for individuals include: 

 Leave the car at home (one trial found that car drivers are exposed to twice 
the air pollution compared to walking the same route, and 8 times the 
exposure of cycling); 

 Walk away from the road edge; 

 Avoid congested routes whether in a car or bus, cycling or walking; 

 If driving, when stopped turn off the engine; 

 Take note of pollution alerts; 

 To reduce indoor air pollution: open windows, use natural cleaning products 
(and avoid air fresheners), don’t smoke, maintain boilers and cookers; 

 Note that plants and trees catch air pollution so prefer walking through green 
areas – and get planting! 

 
9) Nottingham Friends of the Earth supports action being taken by Nottingham City 

Council, including: 

 Workplace Parking Levy (which helps to reduce commuting by car as well as 
funding the tram); 

 Low emission vehicles 

 Electric vehicles, and electric charging points; 

 Promoting business travel plans and ‘Smarter Choices’; 

 Improved routes for walking and cycling; 

 Support for electrification of the Midland Mainline. 
 
10) Questions we would like the Overview & Scrutiny Committee to ask include: 

 What progress has been made on the recommendations made in the DPH 
report of October 2014? 

 What progress has been made on the promised scoping report for a Clean 
Air Zone? 

 Has the Nottinghamshire Environmental Protection Working Group 
completed its review of local Air Quality Improvement Strategy (referred to in 
the DPH report of October 2014 and the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment 
chapter on Air Quality of July 2015)? 

 
Nigel Lee 

Nottingham Friends of the Earth 

Page 16



 3 

 
References: 
 
Public Health England, April 2014: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/estimates-of-mortality-in-local-authority-areas-
associated-with-air-pollution 
 
World Health Organisation, May 2014: 
http://www.who.int/quantifying_ehimpacts/national/countryprofile/AAP_PM_database
_May2014.xls 

 

Health & Wellbeing Board, October 2014: 
http://committee.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=185&MId=4277 
 
Environmental Audit Committee report, December 2014: 
http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-
select/environmental-audit-committee/news/report-air-quality/ 
 
RCP/RCPCH report, February 2015: 
https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/outputs/every-breath-we-take-lifelong-impact-
air-pollution 
 
Defra Air Quality Plan, December 2015: 
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/air-quality-plan-for-reducing-nitrogen-
dioxide-no2-in-nottingham-urban-area-uk0008 
 
Joint Strategic Needs Assessment chapter on Air Quality, July 2015 
http://jsna.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/insight/Strategic-Framework/Nottinghamshire-
JSNA/Cross-cutting-themes/Air-Quality.aspx 
 
Friends of the Earth advice: 
https://www.foe.co.uk/green-blog/how-avoid-toxic-fumes-from-transport 
 

Page 17

https://www.gov.uk/government/news/estimates-of-mortality-in-local-authority-areas-associated-with-air-pollution
https://www.gov.uk/government/news/estimates-of-mortality-in-local-authority-areas-associated-with-air-pollution
http://www.who.int/quantifying_ehimpacts/national/countryprofile/AAP_PM_database_May2014.xls?ua=1
http://www.who.int/quantifying_ehimpacts/national/countryprofile/AAP_PM_database_May2014.xls?ua=1
http://committee.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=185&MId=4277
http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/environmental-audit-committee/news/report-air-quality/
http://www.parliament.uk/business/committees/committees-a-z/commons-select/environmental-audit-committee/news/report-air-quality/
https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/outputs/every-breath-we-take-lifelong-impact-air-pollution
https://www.rcplondon.ac.uk/projects/outputs/every-breath-we-take-lifelong-impact-air-pollution
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/air-quality-plan-for-reducing-nitrogen-dioxide-no2-in-nottingham-urban-area-uk0008
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/air-quality-plan-for-reducing-nitrogen-dioxide-no2-in-nottingham-urban-area-uk0008
http://jsna.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/insight/Strategic-Framework/Nottinghamshire-JSNA/Cross-cutting-themes/Air-Quality.aspx
http://jsna.nottinghamcity.gov.uk/insight/Strategic-Framework/Nottinghamshire-JSNA/Cross-cutting-themes/Air-Quality.aspx
https://www.foe.co.uk/green-blog/how-avoid-toxic-fumes-from-transport


This page is intentionally left blank



 

Air Pollution and Health, 
 Smoke Control Areas, 

 Air Quality Management Areas, and  
Clean Air Zones 

 
 
 
 

 
Richard Taylor 
Community Protection: Environmental Health and Safer Places Team 
Nottingham City Council 

P
age 19



Air 
The air we breathe is mostly nitrogen and oxygen. But 
natural and human activities emit other gases and 
particles into the air which affect our health and the 
environment  

Gas 
mass in g at % 
constituent of air 

approximate 
number of 
molecules 

approximate analogous 
weight note a bag of 
sugar contains 1.6M 
grains 

O2 265.2463802 4.97337E+24 1/4 of a bag of sugar 
N2 916.7578015 1.96448E+25 nearly a bag of sugar 
NO2 0.000190646 2.48668E+18 1/3 to 1 grain of sugar 
CO2 0.656484791 8.95207E+21 
H2O 0.26856196 8.95207E+21 

1m3 of air 1182.660857 2.46361E+25 
24 million million 
million million 

P
age 20



The health effects of the ‘pollutants of concern’ and Local Air Quality Management 

In the UK air pollution is estimated to shorten life expectancy by an average of 7 months 
– this means just a few weeks for some to 11 years for others… 

P
age 21



Air Pollution shortens lives 
1952 – it was estimated 12000+ ‘died early’ due to ‘the great smog’ 

 2008 - it was estimated 29,000 ‘died early’ from invisible air pollution 
Jan 2016 – 29,000 is revised upward to 40,000 

 

Air pollution ‘episodes’ – 
prolonged periods of high 
concentrations have the 
most noticeable effect 

P
age 22



LAQM: Air Quality Objectives to protect health 

Pollutant 

Air Quality Objective 

Date to be achieved by Concentration Measured as 

Benzene 

16.25 µg/m3 Running annual mean 31.12.2003 

5.00 µg/m3 Running annual mean 31.12.2010 

1,3-Butadiene 2.25 µg/m3 Running annual mean 31.12.2003 

Carbon monoxide 10.0 mg/m3 Running 8-hour mean 31.12.2003 

Lead 
0.5  µg/m3 Annual mean 31.12.2004 

0.25  µg/m3 Annual mean 31.12.2008 

Nitrogen dioxide 

200  µg/m3 not to be exceeded more 
than 18 times a year 1-hour mean 31.12.2005 

40  µg/m3 Annual mean 31.12.2005 

Particles (PM10) (gravimetric) 
50  µg/m3, not to be exceeded more 

than 35 times a year 24-hour mean 31.12.2004 

40  µg/m3 Annual mean 31.12.2004 

Sulphur dioxide 

350  µg/m3, not to be exceeded more 
than 24 times a year 1-hour mean 31.12.2004 

125  µg/m3, not to be exceeded more 
than 3 times a year 24-hour mean 31.12.2004 

266  µg/m3, not to be exceeded more 
than 35 times a year 15-minute mean 31.12.2005 

P
age 23



Meteorology and pollution episodes 
Air pollution has no boundaries, 
global air masses and weather 
systems generally disperse and 
dilute air pollution but under 
certain conditions an air mass 
and the pollution in it, doesn’t 
move, allowing air pollution 
levels to increase – resulting in 
pollution episodes. 

P
age 24






Air Pollution episode of April 2014 

 

P
age 25



Clean Air Acts 1956, 1968, 1993 
• Introduced smoke control areas better known as smokeless zones 

and made the air visibly cleaner (most of the time) and significantly 
and dramatically reduced concentrations of sulphur dioxide (acidic 
toxic gas produced by burning coal) and visible/black smoke  

P
age 26



Monitoring and Modelling to assess and predict air quality 

• Monitoring and modelling 
air pollution are balanced 
to make the most of 
resources (time/cost),  
accuracy, and spatial and 
temporal distribution. 

• Modelling is the most 
practicable and systematic 
way of predicting future 
concentrations over a 
large geographical area. 

• Monitoring is required to 
show actual air pollution 
levels (for comparison 
with Air Quality 
Objectives) . 

P
age 27



Clean Air Act and effect on particles and sulphur 
dioxide in Nottingham c.1963- present 

• Note black smoke particles range 
in size from <0.1 to 100 microns. 

P
age 28



Environment Act 1995 Part 3: Local Air Quality Management 
the process identified areas where the nitrogen dioxide annual mean 

air quality objective of 40ug/m3 would not be met 

P
age 29



Nottingham - Monitored levels 1997 - 2015 

NO2 annual mean 
AQO =40 ug/m3 
BUT health effects 
observed at 20-25 
ug/m3 

PM10 annual mean 
AQO = 40 ug/m3 
WHO guide 20 ug/m3 
 
PM2.5 indicative annual 
mean (England)  
= 25 ug/m3 
WHO guide = 10 ug/m3 
BUT no safe exposure 
limit 

P
age 30



April 2014 

P
age 31



looking to 2020 and beyond… 
February 2014 – EU announces infraction proceedings against UK 
Spring 2014 meteorology causes prolonged pollution episode and news headlines 

P
age 32



Followed in May 2014 and again in 2016 by –  
‘UK Cities Named and shamed’ 

P
age 33



•   
 

P
age 34



http://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/IAS/dataviews/report/fullpage?viewId=1529&reportId=226&geoId=21&geoReportId=39482 

• Many other health 
determinants 
linked to air 
pollution, 
inactivity or other 
inequality that if 
tackled will 
improve health 
and reduce 
emissions/ air 
pollution 

P
age 35



 

P
age 36



• February 2015 DEFRA publishes 
‘Getting to Grips with Air 
Pollution’ 

• March –April 2015 – Another 
headline grabbing air pollution 
episode 

• April 2015 – Court Orders Cuts 
to UK NO2 emissions – following 
Clientearth legal action 

• May 2015 – Nottingham/shire 
publishes JSNA chapter on Air 
Pollution  
 

P
age 37



Clean Air Zones 

 

P
age 38



Clean Air Zone – what we know 

 

 P
age 39



How can we meet the Air Quality Objectives? 
traditionally - physical constraints/solutions and behavioural change 
• City Centre major  
• Ring Road major 
• NET lines 2&3 (4+) 
• Travel plans (workplace) 
• Improved public transport 

(quality bus partnerships, park 
and ride) 

• Walking and cycling 
• Managed road network (smart 

motorways, variable speeds) 
• And Clean Air Zones 
 
• Increasingly – our individual 

actions are the solution: better 
informed Citizens, making better 
travel decisions AND realistic 
affordable vehicle/transport 
choices, energy efficiency, 
insulated homes 

P
age 40



OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 

6 JULY 2016 

PROGRAMME FOR SCRUTINY  

REPORT OF HEAD OF LEGAL SERVICES 

 
1.  Purpose 
 
 To consider and set the overall programme and timetable for scrutiny 

activity for the forthcoming year. 
 
2.  Action required  
 
 The Committee is asked to 
 
2.1 note the items scheduled on the work programme for the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committee and Scrutiny Review Panels for 2016/17. 
 
3.  Background information 
 
3.1 One of the main roles of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee is setting, 

managing and co-ordinating the overall programme of scrutiny work.  
This includes: 

 

 mapping out an initial programme for scrutiny at the start of the 
municipal year 

 monitoring progress against the programme throughout the year, 
and making amendments as required 

 evaluating the impact of scrutiny activity and using lessons learnt 
to inform future decisions about scrutiny activity.  

 
3.4 In setting the programme for scrutiny activity, the Committee should aim 

for an outcome-focused work programme that has clear priorities and is 
matched against the resources available to deliver the programme. It is 
intended to hold fewer, but more in depth reviews which will enable 
panels to explore and challenge more.   

 
 Commissioning scrutiny reviews 
 
3.5 Delivery of the programme will primarily be through the commissioning of 

time-limited review panels to carry out reviews into specific, focused 
topics. All reviews must have the potential to make a positive impact on 
improving the wellbeing of local communities and people who live and/or 
work in Nottingham; and to ensure resources are used to their full 
potential, reviews must have a clear and tight focus and be set a realistic 
but challenging timetable for their completion. 

 
3.6 In setting the programme of scrutiny reviews, it is important that the 

programme has flexibility to incorporate unplanned scrutiny work 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6



requested in-year.  However, the Committee will only be able to schedule 
unplanned work after it has reassessed priorities across the scrutiny 
programme and considered the impact on existing reviews of the 
diversion of resources. When the Committee monitors the overall 
programme for scrutiny at each meeting there will be opportunity to do 
this. 

 
3.7  The Committee held a workshop session in March 2016 and identified a 

number of areas for consideration during 2016/17. These topics have 
been identified and are listed in Appendix 1 to this report. 

 
3.8 When establishing a review panel, the Committee needs to decide on: 

 a clear and tight remit for the review 

 a timescale within which the review should be carried out 

 size of review panel, including whether any co-opted members should 
be involved 

 chair of the review panel (to be appointed from the pool of five 
scrutiny chairs) 

  
 and should have regard to the need over the year to engage as many 

councillors as possible in the scrutiny process. 
 

Policy briefings 
 
3.9 Through the process of developing the programme for scrutiny, the 

Committee may identify issues which call for a policy briefing. The 
purpose of these briefings is to inform councillors about a current key 
issue or to prepare councillors for review work that has been 
commissioned. These informal briefings will not be occasions for scrutiny 
to be carried out, although they may result in a suggestion for a new 
scrutiny topic, which would need to be considered by this Committee 
against the current programme for scrutiny and available resource.   

 
3.10 Policy briefings will not form part of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee’s agenda but will be held separately and be open to all 
councillors to attend.   

 
 Monitoring programme for scrutiny 
 
3.11  On an ongoing basis the Committee will be responsible for managing 

and co-ordinating the programme for scrutiny and assessing the impact 
of scrutiny activity. At all future meetings the Committee will monitor the 
progress of the programme, making amendments as appropriate.  

 
4.  List of attached information 
 
 The following information can be found in the appendices to this report: 
 

Appendix 1 – Feasibility criteria for topics 
Appendix 2 – Long list of main scrutiny topics 

Page 42



Appendix 3 - Long-list of potential future OSC/SRP topics 
 
5.  Background papers, other than published works or those 

disclosing exempt or confidential information 
 
None 

 
6.   Published documents referred to in compiling this report 
  
 None 
 
7.  Wards affected 
  
 Citywide 
 
8.  Contact information 
  
 Contact Colleagues 

Rav Kalsi 
Senior Governance Officer 
Rav.kalsi@nottinghamcity.gov.uk 
0115 8763759 

 

Page 43

mailto:Rav.kalsi@nottinghamcity.gov.uk


Appendix 1 - feasibility criteria includes: 
 

Decision making 
and being a 
critical friend 

Is it a topic/key decision which requires 
consultation with Overview and Scrutiny  
prior to the decision being taken. 
 

Yes – include. 
No – apply other 
criteria and consider 
removing 

Public Interest 
and relevance 

Is the topic still relevant in terms of it still 
being an issue for citizens, partners or 
the council in terms of performance, 
delivery or cancellation of services?  

Yes – apply other 
criteria and consider 
inclusion 
No – apply other 
criteria and consider 
removing 

Ability to change 
or influence 

Can the Committee actively influence the 
council or its partners to accept 
recommendations and ensure positive 
outcomes for citizens and therefore be 
able to demonstrate the value and impact 
that scrutiny can have? 
 

Yes – apply other 
criteria and consider 
inclusion 
No – apply other 
criteria and consider 
removing 

Range and scope 
of impact 

Is this a large topic area impacting on 
significant areas of the population and 
the council’s partners or significant 
impact on minority groups. 
 
Is there interest from partners and 
colleagues to undertake and support this 
review and will it be beneficial? 
 

Yes – apply other 
criteria and consider 
inclusion 
No – apply other 
criteria and consider 
removing 

Avoidance of 
duplication of 
effort 

Is this topic area very similar to one 
already being scrutinised in another 
arena or has it already been investigated 
in the recent past?  
 

Yes – consider 
involvement in the 
existing activity or 
consider removing  
No – apply other 
criteria and consider 
inclusion. 

 

Page 44



Appendix 2 
 

 
6 July 2016 
 

 

 Air Quality in Nottingham 
To consider an update from the Portfolio Holder for Job, Growth and Transport on the progress of 
the Growth Plan in Nottingham. 

  (Economic Development, Portfolio Holder for Jobs, Growth and Transport) 
 

 Discussion with Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Culture 
To consider an update from the Portfolio Holder on his Council plans, priorities and challenges 

  (Councillor Dave Trimble) 
 

 Work Programme 
To agree a draft work programme for 2016/17  
 

 
7 September 2016 
 

 

 Changing Faces of Trading Standards in Nottingham 
To consider an update from the Chief Executive on the Council’s transition from ‘Good to Great’ and 
the resulting changes to the Council’s operating model. 

 
  (Richard Antcliffe, Chief Licensing, Trading Standards and Anti-Social Behaviour Officer) 

 

 Discussion with Portfolio Holder for Business, Growth and Transport 
To consider an update from the Portfolio Holder on his Council plans, priorities and challenges 

  (Councillor Nick McDonald) 
 

 Work Programme 
To agree a draft work programme for 2016/17 
  
 
 
 

P
age 45



 
5 October 2016 
 

 

 Flood Mitigation Strategy in Nottingham 
To consider joint working and flood mitigation processes in Nottingham 

(Highways at Nottingham City Council, Highways Agency, Severn Trent Water) 
 

 Discussion with Portfolio Holder for Community Services 
To consider an update from the Portfolio Holder on her Council plans, priorities and challenges 

  (Councillor Nicola Heaton) 
 

 Work Programme 
To agree a draft work programme for 2015/16  

 

 
9 November 2016 
 

 

 Nottingham City Safeguarding Children’s Board Annual Report 
To consider a report from the Chair of the NCSCB on its Annual Report  

  (NCSCB Chair, Chris Cooke) 
 

 Discussion with Portfolio Holder for Resources and Neighbourhood Regeneration 
To consider an update from the Portfolio Holder on his Council plans, priorities and challenges 

  (Councillor Graham Chapman) 
 

 Work Programme 
To agree a draft work programme for 2016/17  

 

 
7 December 2016  
 

 

 Voluntary and Community Sector Grants 
  

  (Louise Graham, Voluntary and Community Sector Partnerships Specialist, Market Strategy and 
Development) 

 

 Discussion with Lead of the Council 
To consider an update from the Leader on his Council plans, priorities and challenges 

P
age 46



  (Councillor Jon Collins) 
 

 Work Programme 
To agree a draft work programme for 2016/17  

 

 
4 January 2017  
 

 

 Tourism in Nottingham and Nottinghamshire 
 

  (Hugh White, Director of Sports, Culture and Parks) 
 

 Discussion with Portfolio Holder for Early Intervention and Early Years 
To consider an update from the Portfolio Holder on his Council plans, priorities and challenges 

  (Councillor David Mellen) 
 

 Work Programme 
To agree a draft work programme for 2016/17  

 

 
8 February 2017 
 

 

 Housing and the Private Rented Sector in Nottingham 
 

  (Housing) 
 

 Discussion with Portfolio Holder for Schools 
To consider an update from the Portfolio Holder on his Council plans, priorities and challenges 

  (Councillor Sam Webster) 
 

 Work Programme 
To agree a draft work programme for 2016/17  

 

 
8 March 2017 
 

 

 Cycling Strategy in Nottingham 
 

P
age 47



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  (Transport colleagues) 
 

 Discussion with Portfolio Holder for Energy and Sustainability 
To consider an update from the Portfolio Holder on his Council plans, priorities and challenges 

  (Councillor Alan Clark) 
 

 Work Programme 
To agree a draft work programme for 2016/17  

 

 
5 April 2017 
 

 

 Discussion with Portfolio Holder for Planning and Housing 
To consider an update from the Portfolio Holder on her Council plans, priorities and challenges 

  (Councillor Jane Urquhart) 
 

 Work Programme Session 
To agree a draft work programme for 2017/18  

 

P
age 48



 

Appendix 3 
Scrutiny Review Topics 2016/17 
 
 

 Topic Comments 

1 Deprivation in Nottingham – 
Nottingham is amongst the local 
authority districts with the largest 
proportion of highly deprived 
neighbourhoods in England. 
 
 

Review to take place on Thursday 15 
September 2016, 10am. 
 

 Councillor Sue Johnson to chair the Panel. 

 Scope to be finalised and submitted for approval 
to OSC. 

 

2 
Graduate retention and 
recruitment in Nottingham – a 
review to look more closely at 
what work is taking place to 
improve and encourage 
graduates to remain in the city. 

Status – to be scheduled 
 

 Councillor Azad Choudhry to chair the Panel. 

 Scope needs to finalised with chair and 
submitted for approval to OSC. 
 

3 Impact of Welfare Reform in 
Nottingham – What is the impact 
of the Welfare Reforms 
introduced in April 2013 on 
citizens and services in 
Nottingham. 

Status – to be scheduled 
 

 Councillor Glyn Jenkins to chair the Panel. 

 Scope needs to finalised with chair and 
submitted for approval to OSC. 

 

4 Fracking in Nottingham and 
Nottinghamshire – a review to 
look closely at the impact of 
fracking in Nottingham and 
neighbouring authorities. 

Status – to be scheduled 
 

 Councillor Brian Parbutt to chair the Panel. 

 Scope needs to finalised with chair and 
submitted for approval to OSC. 

 

5 Effectiveness of Nottingham 
City Council’s consultation 
process 

Status – to be scheduled 
 

 Councillor Glyn Jenkins to chair the Panel. 

 Scope needs to finalised with chair and 
submitted for approval to OSC. 

 

6 Parking enforcement in 
Nottingham 

Status – to be scheduled 
 

 Councillor Azad Choudhry to chair the Panel. 

 Scope needs to finalised with chair and 
submitted for approval to OSC. 

 

7 Housing regeneration in 
Nottingham – Nottingham City 
Council aims to build 2.500 new 
houses that Nottingham people 
can afford to rent or buy. Is that a 
deliverable target? 

Status – to be scheduled 
 

 Councillor Sue Johnson to chair the Panel. 

 Scope needs to finalised with chair and 
submitted for approval to OSC. 

 

8 Cycling in Nottingham – Status – to be scheduled 

APPENDIX 3 

Page 49



 

Nottingham City Council has an 
ambitious vision for a cycle city 
and recently secured £6.1m to 
kick start an overhaul of the 
Council’s cycling facilities. 

 

 Councillor Glyn Jenkins to chair the Panel. 

 Scope needs to finalised with chair and 
submitted for approval to OSC. 

 

 
 

Page 50


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES
	160616

	4 Discussion with Portfolio Holder for Leisure and Culture
	5 Air Quality in Nottingham
	Nottingham Friends of the Earth
	Air Quality and Health ppt final for Scrutiny Committee
	�Air Pollution and Health,� Smoke Control Areas,� Air Quality Management Areas, and �Clean Air Zones����
	Air
	The health effects of the ‘pollutants of concern’ and Local Air Quality Management
	Air Pollution shortens lives�1952 – it was estimated 12000 ‘died early’ due to ‘the great smog’� 2008 - it was estimated 29,000 ‘died early’ from invisible air pollution�Jan 2016 – 29,000 is revised upward to 40,000�
	LAQM: Air Quality Objectives to protect health
	Meteorology and pollution episodes
	Air Pollution episode of April 2014
	Clean Air Acts 1956, 1968, 1993
	Monitoring and Modelling to assess and predict air quality
	Clean Air Act and effect on particles and sulphur dioxide in Nottingham c.1963- present
	Environment Act 1995 Part 3: Local Air Quality Management�the process identified areas where the nitrogen dioxide annual mean air quality objective of 40ug/m3 would not be met
	Nottingham - Monitored levels 1997 - 2015
	April 2014
	looking to 2020 and beyond…
	Followed in May 2014 and again in 2016 by – �‘UK Cities Named and shamed’
	Slide Number 16
	http://www.nottinghaminsight.org.uk/IAS/dataviews/report/fullpage?viewId=1529&reportId=226&geoId=21&geoReportId=39482
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Clean Air Zones
	Clean Air Zone – what we know
	How can we meet the Air Quality Objectives?�traditionally - physical constraints/solutions and behavioural change


	6 Work Programme 2016/17

